TEACHING READING COMPREHENSION THROUGH THE COOPERATIVE INTEGRATED READING AND COMPOSITION (CIRC) TECHNIQUE AT SMPN 13 BANDAR LAMPUNG

(Undergraduate Thesis)

By Berliana Apriani 2013042001



ENGLISH EDUCATION STUDY PROGRAM

DEPARTMENT OF LANGUAGE AND ARTS EDUCATION

FACULTY OF TEACHER TRAINING AND EDUCATION

UNIVERSITY OF LAMPUNG

2024

TEACHING READING COMPREHENSION THROUGH THE COOPERATIVE INTEGRATED READING AND COMPOSITION (CIRC) TECHNIQUE AT SMPN 13 BANDAR LAMPUNG

By

Berliana Apriani

An Undergraduate Thesis

Submitted in a Partial Fulfillment of The Requirements for a Bachelor's Degree

In

The Language and Arts Education Department of Faculty of Teacher Training and Education



ENGLISH EDUCATION STUDY PROGRAM

DEPARTMENT OF LANGUAGE AND ARTS EDUCATION

FACULTY OF TEACHER TRAINING AND EDUCATION

UNIVERSITY OF LAMPUNG

2024

ABSTRACT

TEACHING READING COMPREHENSION THROUGH THE COOPERATIVE INTEGRATED READING AND COMPOSITION (CIRC) TECHNIQUE AT SMPN 13 BANDAR LAMPUNG

By

Berliana Apriani

This research aims to find out whether the use of the Cooperative Integrated Reading and Composition (CIRC) technique is effective in students' reading comprehension or not and to find out the students' perceptions after they were taught through the Cooperative Integrated Reading and Composition (CIRC) technique. This research was quantitative. The researcher used one group pre-test and post-test design. The population of this research was the first-grade students at SMPN 13 Bandar Lampung of the academic year 2023/2024 where students of 7.1 which consisted of 30 students were chosen as the sample. In collecting the data, the researcher used a reading comprehension test to explore the students' reading comprehension after the students were taught through the CIRC technique and a questionnaire to investigate the students' perceptions of reading comprehension using the CIRC technique. The researcher used a Repeated Measure t-test to analyze the data.

The result of this research showed that there was a significant difference in students' scores from 55.60 in the pre-test to 73.13 in the post-test. It was found that the t ratio is higher than the t-table (8.963 > 2.045) and two-tailed significance showed that p < 0.05 (p = 0.001). The result showed an improvement in scores from the pre-test to the post-test in students' reading comprehension after being taught through the CIRC technique. Furthermore, based on the data obtained from the questionnaire, it was found that the student's perceptions of the CIRC technique were positive. It can be concluded that the CIRC technique is considered an effective technique for improving students' reading comprehension.

Keywords: Cooperative Integrated Reading and Composition (CIRC) Technique, Cooperative Learning, Reading, Reading Comprehension, Descriptive Text Research Title

: TEACHING READING COMPREHENSION

THROUGH THE COOPERATIVE INTEGRATED

READING AND COMPOSITION (CIRC)
TECHNIQUE AT SMPN 13 BANDAR LAMPUNG

Student's Name

: Berliana Apriani

Student's Number

: 2013042001

Study Program

: English Education

Department

: Language and Arts Education

Faculty

: Teacher Training and Education

APPROVED BY Advisory Committee

Advisor

Co-Advisor

Prof. Dr. Cucu Sutarsyah, M.A. NIP 19570406 198603 1 002 Dian Shafwati, S.Pd., M.Pd NIP 19890913 201903 2 012

The Chairperson of The Department of Language and Arts Education

> Dr. Sumarii, M.Hum. NIP 19700318 199403 2 002

ADMITTED BY

1. Examination Committee

Chairperson : Prof. Dr. Cucu Sutarsyah, M.A.

Examiner : Dr. Ari Nurweni, M.A.

Secretary : Dian Shafwati, S.Pd., M.Pd.

Dean of Teacher Training and Education Faculty

Graduated on: May 28th, 2024

r. Sunyono, M.Si. 19651230 199111 1 001

LEMBAR PERNYATAAN

Yang bertanda tangan dibawah ini, saya:

Nama

: Berliana Apriani

NPM

2013042001

Program Studi

: Pendidikan Bahasa Inggris

Jurusan

: Pendidikan Bahasa dan Seni

Fakultas

: Keguruan dan Ilmu Pendidikan

Judul Skripsi

: Teaching Reading Comprehension Through The

Cooperative Integrated Reading and Composition (CIRC)

Technique at SMPN 13 Bandar Lampung

Menyatakan bahwa skripsi ini adalah karya saya sendiri. Sepanjang penngetahuan saya, karya ini tidak berisi materi yang ditulis orang lain, kecuali bagian – bagian tertentu yang saya ambil sebagai acuan. Apabila pernyataan ini tidak benar, sepenuhnya menjadi tanggung jawab saya.

Bandar Lampung, 28 Mei 2024

Yang membuat pernyataan,

Berliana Apriani

NPM 2013042001

CURRICULUM VITAE

The writer's name is Berliana Apriani. She was born in Bandar Lampung on April 8th, 2002. She is the second child of Drs. Radius Wardhana and Nodayati. She has one older brother named M. Abdel Thasman, S.Pd.

In 2007, she pursued her formal education for the first time at TK Beringin Raya. Then, she continued her studies at SDN 1 Beringin Raya and graduated in 2015. Later, she accomplished her junior high at SMPN 14 Bandar Lampung and graduated in 2017. Finally, she completed her senior high in SMAN 9 Bandar Lampung and graduated in 2020. In the same year, she registered as a freshman in the English Education Study Program of Lampung University through the SNMPTN program.

She took part in some internal organization during her study at Lampung University. In 20221, she was a public relations member of SEEDS (Society of English Education Department Students). Besides, she joined *RAKANILA (Radio Kampus Universitas Lampung)* and was elected head of the Event Organization division in 2023.

She participated in the *Kampus Mengajar* as one of the *Kampus Merdeka* programs organized by the Ministry of Education. She was assigned to be a teacher assistant at SDN 1 Sukamaju, Teluk Betung Timur for five months in 2023. Then, she enjoyed her experience during the Community Services Program (KKN) at Pekon Campang Tiga, Tanggamus.

MOTTO

Believe you can, and you are halfway there.

(Theodore Roosevelt)

DEDICATION

In the name of Allah Subhanallahu Wa Ta' ala, The Most Beneficient, The Most Merciful. The writers proudly dedicate this paper to her precious parents and siblings, for their exceptional love and unconditional support for her.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Alhamdulillah robbill 'alamin, praise and gratitude to Allah Subhanahu Wa Ta'ala the Almighty for his gracious mercy and tremendous blessings that guide the writer in completing this undergraduate thesis entitled "Teaching Reading Comprehension Through The Cooperative Integrated Reading and Composition (CIRC) Technique at SMPN 13 Bandar Lampung". This paper is submitted to fulfill one of the requirements to obtain a Bachelor's degree in the English Education Study Program, Faculty of Teacher Training and Education, University of Lampung.

In completing this work, the writer would like to express her deepest gratitude for all the help and support provided by those who have given their valuable time to provide advice and assistance to complete this thesis. Therefore, the writer would like to express her deepest thanks and appreciation to:

- 1. Prof. Dr. Cucu Sutarsyah, M.A., as the first advisor for his patience, supportive guidance, willingness to provide constructive suggestions, and all support in accomplishing the writer's undergraduate thesis.
- **2.** Dian Shafwati, S.Pd., M.Pd., as the second advisor, for her guidance, feedback, and encouragement in finishing this undergraduate thesis.
- 3. Dr. Ari Nurweni, M.A., as the examiner, for her useful guidance, suggestions, and time.
- 4. Dr. Feni Munifatullah, M. Hum., as the head of the English Education Study Program, for her encouragement and guidance.
- 5. Prof. Dr. Ag. Bambang Setiyadi, M.A., Ph.D., as the academic advisor, for his guidance and suggestions.
- 6. SMPN 13 Bandar Lampung, especially for Irmawati Sukardi, S. Pd., as the English teacher who helps and guides the writer during the research.
- 7. Her beloved parents, Drs. Radius Wardhana and Nodayati, "*Abah* dan *Ibu*", for their affection, prayers, and endless support to her.
- 8. Her beloved sibling, M. Abdel Thasman, S.Pd., for his support, and prayers to her.

٧

9. Her cherished person, for his support, helping hands and accompanying her

in completing her undergraduate thesis.

10. Her beloved besties, Adinda Aurethashafa, Ratu Mutiara Amanah, Laila

Fadhila Azzahra, Mira Apriliana Sari, Assyifa Aromathis, Rosa

Uswatunnisa, Annisa Ilma Savitri, and Sandrina Wahyuning Dias, for their

love, companionship, and helping hands in her process of completing her

study.

11. Her beloved childhood friends, Agatha Novianis Panjaitan and Annisa

Savera, for their love and support.

12. Her beloved KKN friends, Tri Yulia Ningsih, Lilis Nuraini, Nopi Febriyani

for their help and support of the writer.

13. Her beloved friends, Regita Prameswari, and all the rest of Class A and

ED'20, for their help and support of the writer.

14. Last but not least, thank you to the writer herself, Berliana Apriani, for her

efforts, doing all this hard work, and how she never gave up on completing

this undergraduate thesis. Thank you.

Bandar Lampung, May 23rd 2024

The writer,

Berliana Apriani

TABLE OF CONTENTS

T	ABLE OF CONTENTS	. vi
I.	INTRODUCTION	1
	1.1 Background	1
	1.2 Research Questions	6
	1.3 The Objectives of Research	6
	1.4 The Use of The Research.	6
	1.5 The Scope of The Research	7
	1.6 Definition of Terms	7
D	I. LITERATURE REVIEW	9
	2.1 Concept of Reading	9
	2.2 Concept of Reading Comprehension	10
	2.3 Kinds of Reading	.11
	2.4 Aspects of Reading	14
	2.5 Concept of Teaching Reading.	15
	2.6 Concept of Descriptive Text	17
	2.7 Cooperative Integrated Reading and Composition (CIRC)	18
	2.8 The Advantages of CIRC	20
	2.9 Teaching Reading Through CIRC	20
	2.10 Perception	21
	2.11 Previous Study	23
	2. 12 Hypothesis	25
III. METHODS		
	3.1 Research Design	26
	3.2 Population and Sample	27
	3.2.1 Population	27
	3.2.2 Sample	28
	3.3 Instruments	28
	3.4 Data Collection Technique	29
	3.4.1 Pre-test	29
	3.4.2 Treatment	29
	3 4 3 Post-test	30

3.4.4 Questionnaire	30
3.5 Research Procedures	31
3.6 Validity and Reliability of Research Instrument	33
3.6.1 Validity of Reading Test	33
3.6.2 Reliability of Reading Test	36
3.6.3 Difficulty Level	37
3.6.4 Discrimination Power	38
3.6.5 Result of Try-Out	40
3.7 Scoring System	41
3.8. Data Analysis	41
3.8.1 Scoring the N-Gain of Pre-test and Post-test	41
3.9.2 Drawing Conclusion	42
3.10 Hypotheses Testing	42
V. CONCLUSION AND SUGGESTION	
5.1 Conclusions	44
5.2 Suggestions	45
REFERENCES	47

LIST OF TABLES

Table 3. 1 Learning Achievement	34
Table 3. 2 Specification Table of Content Validity	35
Table 3. 3 The Result of The Reliability Test of Reading Comprehension	37
Table 3. 4 The Result of Level of Difficulty	38
Table 3. 5 The Result of Discrimination Power	39
Table 3. 6 The Result of Try–Out	40

I. INTRODUCTION

In this chapter, the researcher presents several main points to discuss the main ideas of the study. It consists of several parts including background, research questions, the objective of the research, the use of the research, the scope of the research, and the definition of terms.

1.1 Background

According to Sutarsyah (2015), reading is a cognitive process where a reader engages in the mental process of knowing, learning, and understanding things. Reading begins with getting meaning from sounds that are transferred into letters or written symbols. In addition, he stated that reading involves a bottom-up process, a top-down process, and an interaction process. The bottom-up process means decoding the written symbols where the readers recognize letters and combining them into words, words into phrases, clauses, and sentences from the text. The top-down process means using the readers' schemata to construct meaning from the text. The interaction process involves both bottom-up and top-down processes.

According to Brown (2001), reading is a unique skill that asks readers to focus on the text and even on a single word to get the meaning. Although there are scanning and skimming skills in reading, making inferences, and getting general information, readers should also understand the meaning and context of the text. Reading ability will be developed best in association with writing, listening, and speaking activities.

Duke (2003) stated that comprehension is a process in which readers make meaning by interacting with the text through the combination of prior knowledge and previous experience, information in the text, and the views of readers related to the text.

In the current educational environment, reading comprehension is a crucial ability for students to develop. It helps them learn a second language, enhancing students' word recognition abilities, and raising students' reading level, rate, and understanding in the information and technology world nowadays. As a result, the primary goal of reading is to teach students how to interact effectively while reading to deduce meaning. Students must fulfill their goals so that reading, writing in class, teaching, and learning are all integrated.

Not only that, the students are expected to gain knowledge and understand the context that has been explained in the text. It means that the students need to learn a considerable amount of information from a text. Therefore, the students require abilities to understand and remember the main ideas as well as several details that elaborate the main idea and supporting ideas in the text.

Based on the researcher's interview with one of the English teachers in SMPN 13 Bandar Lampung, the students especially in first grade tended to gain a low reading comprehension score. This is due to the lack of vocabulary they have and also students not getting used to reading books, which makes students lazy to read. This is proven by the teacher's use of teaching techniques which have not been able to create students' comfort in reading. Students who are lazy about reading and are

only given instructions to read a text and asked to answer several questions will make it increasingly difficult for them to understand the text.

To assist students in improving their comprehension skills, teachers must be able to apply interactive strategies and guide students to carry out instructions where they can engage and participate in reading activities. Several strategies or techniques are recommended to be applied in class, carried out by the teacher, which can attract students' attention and participation in classroom learning.

There are issues in the field of education, particularly with the learning process and the way that learning is still heavily centered on the teacher in Indonesian schools, adhering to outdated teaching methods from the past. Process of teaching and learning in a classroom (TCL). The process of teaching and learning suffered as a result. One of the effects is a decrease in student motivation to learn, which affects the achievement of poor student learning outcomes, as evidenced by the acquisition of scores below the KKM established by the school. This is due to the way of teaching from teachers who are teacher centers or teacher-oriented teaching. Students do not get the opportunity to explore their potential so learning seems passive and less enthusiastic Thus, to solve these problems, the researcher chose Cooperative learning as the appropriate technique for students in first grade.

Cooperative learning provides opportunities for students with different backgrounds and conditions to work interdependently on common tasks, and through cooperative reward structures, learn to respect one another. According to Slavin (2011), cooperative learning is an instructional method in which teachers

organize students into small groups, which then work together to help one another learn academic content.

Therefore, one alternative that can be used by teachers in learning through teacheroriented methods and cooperative learning is the Cooperative Integrated Reading
and Composition (CIRC) technique. CIRC is a kind of technique in teaching
reading. It is an effective technique to help the students in comprehension reading
the passage in which the teaching and learning processes are mainly in group
learning activities (Slavin, 1987). It is a comprehensive program for teaching
reading and writing in the upper elementary and middle grades (Slavin, 1995). In
CIRC, students work in groups to work cooperatively on various activities such as
reading in pairs, identifying the main story element, doing vocabulary and
summarization activities, and practicing reading comprehension and creative
writing (Calderon, Hertz-Lazarowitz, & Slavin, 1998).

According to Durukan (2011), the CIRC technique is developed to support the traditionally used "skill-based reading groups" approach. Firstly, reading groups are established in the classroom. Next, students are paired off within the groups. When the teacher works with a reading group, couples try to teach each other meaningful reading and writing skills by using reciprocal learning techniques. They help each other in performing basic skill-building activities such as oral reading, contextual guessing, asking questions, summarizing, writing a composition based on the story, revising and correcting the composition.

The benefits of cooperative learning in teaching strategy are shown by Alhaidari (2006). The implementation of cooperative learning in reading comprehension

could improve students' achievement in cooperative partner and group activities, reach learning goals, and individual assessment. Therefore, a major goal of CIRC is to help students to learn reading comprehension skills cooperatively in teams (Slavin, 1995)

Furthermore, the researcher wants to assess students' perceptions of the effectiveness of the CIRC technique in students' reading comprehension by examining their experiences using the technique. Perception is the process by which an individual understands the thing around them and the environment through the five senses which are influenced by experiences so that the person is aware of what has been observed it ultimately affects his or her attitude and behavior (Hendra, 2013).

Research that was conducted by Mubarok and Sofiana (2017) found that CIRC can improve students' reading ability better than the conventional teaching strategy. The study was conducted on one state junior high school in Jepara. The result of the research showed that student's scores were improving significantly. Therefore, it could be concluded that CIRC is more effective than conventional strategy. It has a positive effect on the students' reading ability. Moreover, the researcher found that CIRC increases students' reading ability better than the conventional teaching strategy. Based on the explanation above, the research conducted research with the title "Cooperative Integrated Reading and Composition (CIRC) and Reading Motivation: Examining The Effect On Students' Reading Ability".

The previous research, new researcher would like to continue this research on junior high school students in Bandar Lampung to see if there is any significant difference in student reading comprehension abilities after being taught using the CIRC techniques and student perception towards CIRC technique

1.2 Research Questions

Based on the background that has been discussed above, the researcher formulates the problem as follows:

- 1. Is there any significant difference in students' reading comprehension ability after they are taught using the CIRC technique?
- 2. How is the students' perception after they are taught through the CIRC technique in the descriptive text?

1.3 The Objectives of Research

The goal of this research which is stated in the problem statement above was:

- To find out whether there is any significant difference between the reading comprehension of students who are taught by using the CIRC technique and the reading comprehension of students who are taught without using the CIRC technique.
- 2. To investigate how the students' perception is after they are taught through the CIRC technique in descriptive text

1.4 The Use of The Research

1. Theoretically, this study might give some contributions and support the use of the CIRC technique in the English language teaching field, especially for teaching reading. For researchers, the result can be a reference or comparison in further study for the discussion of similar issues.

2. Practically, the result of this study might be used as a consideration for English teachers to implement the CIRC technique in teaching reading. Besides that, the researcher expects the students are able to learn English easily, and for teachers, this technique could be an alternative to monitor the reading comprehension process of the English students.

1.5 The Scope of The Research

The focus area of this study was to investigate the students' reading comprehension before and after were taught the CIRC technique. Using a quantitative approach as the methodology to examine the data. This research was implemented in the first grade of SMPN 13 Bandar Lampung to know the effectiveness of using the CIRC technique on students' reading comprehension. The test in this study, this research was applied a pre-experimental design with one group pre-test and post-test.

1.6 Definition of Terms

Clear information may reduce misunderstanding of the contents of this paper. Some terms were defined in order to give a basic understanding of the related concepts.

These are stated below:

a. Reading Comprehension

Reading comprehension is a process in which readers make meaning by interacting with the text through the combination of prior knowledge and previous experience, information in the text, and the views of readers related to the text (Duke, 2003).

b. Cooperative Learning

Cooperative learning is an instructional method in which teachers organize students into small groups, which then work together to help one another learn academic content (Slavin, 2011).

c. Cooperative Integrated Reading Composition (CIRC)

The cooperative integrated reading and composition (CIRC) technique is one of the learning techniques based on cooperation, and it is designed to develop reading, writing, and other language skills in the upper grades of primary education (Acikgoz in Erhan, 2011).

d. Perceptions

Perception is the process by which an individual understands the thing around them and the environment through the five senses which are influenced by experiences so that the person is aware of what has been observed it ultimately affects his or her attitude and behavior (Hendra, 2013).

II. LITERATURE REVIEW

This chapter presents and discusses the concept of reading, the concept of reading comprehension, the kinds of reading, the aspects of reading, the teaching of reading, the definition of perception, and descriptive text. Then CIRC technique, some components of CIRC, the advantages of CIRC, teaching reading using CIRC, and the previous study.

2.1 Concept of Reading

Reading is an active process that consists of recognition and comprehension skills. It is also described as a complex process of making meaning from a text, or a variety of purposes in a wide range of contexts (Patel and Preeven, 2008).

Kalayo and Anshari (2007), stated that reading is an activity with a purpose. The purpose of reading is also determined by an appropriate approach to reading comprehension. It means that before reading, the readers have to know the purpose of the reading itself to get the meaning of what they read.

Reading is a unique skill that asks readers to focus on the text and even on a single word to get the meaning. Although there are scanning and skimming skills in reading, making inferences, and getting general information, readers should also understand the meaning and context of the text. Reading ability will be developed best in association with writing, listening, and speaking activities (Brown, 2001).

From the definitions above, the researcher can conclude that reading is a combination of word recognition and intellect which are linked with prior knowledge to understand the message conveyed so that the information coming from the author can be easily understood by the reader.

2.2 Concept of Reading Comprehension

According to Eskey (2002), reading comprehension is a complex process involving more than one skill in which readers make sense of the text by combining their prior knowledge and the information given in the text itself.

Reading comprehension is a process in which readers make meaning by interacting with the text through the combination of prior knowledge and previous experience, information in the text, and the views of readers related to the text (Duke, 2003).

According to Snow (2002), defines reading comprehension as the process of extracting and constructing meaning concurrently through interaction and involvement with written language. The words extracting and constructing are to emphasize both the importance and the insufficiency of the text as a determinant of reading comprehension. It is widely accepted that reading begins with getting meaning from written symbols. The reader imagines transferring sound into letters to get the meaning out (Sutarsyah, 2018).

Reading comprehension is defined as "understanding the meaning of words, sentences, and paragraphs through reading". As the description above makes clear. It goes beyond simply reading aloud. If students simply read aloud without comprehending the text's meaning, it indicates that they were unable to comprehend what they were reading.

2.3 Kinds of Reading

According to Pater and Jain (2008), reading is an important skill for people. Based on the theory of reading comprehension highlighted in the preceding discussion, there are six types of classroom reading performance such as reading aloud, silent reading, intensive reading, extensive reading, scanning strategies, and skimming strategies.

a. Reading Aloud

Reading aloud is one kind of reading activity that can be used to check the pronunciation of the students. They make accurate connections between graphemes and phonemes. It is vital in reading in order to speed up word recognition and to help pronounce and learn new words. Reading aloud forces students to make and practice these connections. Students should read aloud prepared texts at the appropriate level to the teacher and support groups or other individuals so that they have feedback as possible on their decoding skills. For the success of this activity, the teacher must consider many factors such as the material the teacher present before students should be according to previous knowledge of the students or related to their own experience, the teacher should emphasize the stress of learners and the teacher should be very careful while the process of reading is going on. If any mistake is committed by learners, they should correct it with friendly and productive (Petel, 2008).

The benefit of using this activity in the classroom enables the learner to develop the skill of reading very well by speaking or expressing ideas and also develop their pronunciation. Language learning is a kind of imitation. When the teacher says

anything or reads any text, the learner also tries to imitate that. The teacher should have innovative ideas so that they can make this activity very effective.

b. Silent Reading

Silent reading is a very important skill in the teaching of English, in this activity, the students comprehend and understand what they read 10 because there is not any noise to disturb them when they read. This reading should be employed to increase reading ability among learners. The benefit of using silent reading in the classroom activity does not only enables the students to be more active and accurate but, also needs minimal time because this activity is done at a time. All students participate together in this activity at a time. This activity also helps the students to develop the skill of reading fast, but only bright and intelligent students can learn this skill and average students learn it hardly (Petel, 2008).

c. Intensive Reading

Intensive reading is related to further progress in language learning under the teacher's guidance. Intensive reading will provide a basis for explaining the difficulties of structure and for extending knowledge of vocabulary and idioms. It will also provide material for developing greater control of the language in speech and writing (Petel, 2008).

d. Extensive Reading

Extensive reading is reading for pleasure. The reader wants to know about something. The reader does not care about specific or important information after

reading. Usually, people read to keep them updated. It is used to obtain a general understanding of a subject and includes reading longer texts for enjoyment only.

Harmer (2007) states that one of the fundamental conditions of a successful extensive reading program is that students should be reading material that they can understand. If they are struggling to understand every word, they can hardly be read for pleasure. This means that students at the appropriate level can read them with ease and confidence. Extensive reading assignments may direct students to articles of current interest in foreign language magazines or newspapers. To ensure that students do not become bogged down in reading which is too complicated, the teacher will be well advised to discuss the relation of articles to be read, with due regard to the special interest of the reader.

e. Scanning Strategies

Scanning is not a reading process in the true sense of the word. It is a search that requires a reader to float over the material until he finds what needs. Then he stops and reads as much as necessary in order to answer his question.

f. Skimming Strategies

Skimming refers to the process of reading only the main ideas within a passage to get an overall impression of the content of the reading selection. Skimming is a strategy used to look for the 'gist' of what the author is saying without a lot of detail (reading skills for college students) this is used in one only wants a preview or an overview of the material. Skimming is also used after a person has already carefully studied and needs to review the major ideas and concepts.

2.4 Aspects of Reading

There are five aspects of reading comprehension according to Nuttall (1982) namely main idea, specific information, reference, inference, and understanding the meaning or word. The explanation is as follows:

a. Determining Main Idea

The main idea is a statement that tells the author's point about the topic. Roell (2016) stated the main idea of a paragraph is the point of the passage, minus all the details. In determining of the main idea, the students are expected to find the main idea of the text, so, they should comprehend the topic that is told in the text. The main idea is usually a sentence, it is usually the first sentence but it can be in the middle or in the last sentence (Vener, 2002). Therefore, this can make the main idea more difficult to find. The students may get confused to see what the main idea of a passage is, and where the main idea is located.

b. Finding Specific Information (Scanning)

Brown (2001) stated that scanning is quickly searching for some particular piece or piece of information in a text. In finding the specific information, the students have to find the detailed information or idea that was mentioned in the text.

c. Identifying Reference

Reference is the relationship between a grammatical unit usually a pronoun that refers to (or stands in for) another grammatical unit usually a noun or noun phrase (Rainbolt and Dwyer, 2011). In identifying references, the students are expected to understand what the pronouns in the sentences are used such as the pronouns that are used to show people, places, or situations.

d. Making Inference.

In making inferences, the students are expected to comprehend the text to find the conclusion of the statements in the text. For example, the question is "What is the meaning of the statement above?" It means that the students need to find the conclusion based on the statement. Kopitski (2007) also said that readers need to practice combining clues from the text with their background knowledge to make inferences. Therefore, sometimes the students are difficult to find the conclusion of the text because the meaning of the statement is not written on the text.

e. Understanding the Meaning of Word

Understanding the meaning of words, the student must find the meaning of a difficult word in the context of the text when understanding the meaning of a sentence or text, and then find the appropriate meaning for the word. Hedge (2000: 193) noticed vocabulary is another major component of reading ability with which language learners will experience difficulty. Therefore, unfamiliar vocabularies about the text need to be taught to students before reading the material so that they can easily understand the material.

2.5 Concept of Teaching Reading

Alyousef (2005: 143) states that in teaching reading, contemporary reading tasks, unlike the traditional materials, involve three-phase procedures: pre-, while-, and post-reading stages. The pre-reading stage helps in activating the relevant schema. For example, teachers can ask students some questions that arouse their interest while previewing the text. The aim of the while-reading stage (or interactive process) is to develop students' ability to tackle texts by developing their linguistic

and schematic knowledge. Post-reading includes activities that enhance learning comprehension using matching exercises, cloze exercises, cut-up sentences, and comprehension questions.

Teaching reading aims to develop the student's reading skills so that they can read English texts effectively and efficiently. Readers should have a particular purpose in their mind before they interact with the various types of reading text. Thus, effective reading is always purposeful. As Suparman (2005) states there are two major reasons for reading (1) reading for pleasure; (2) reading for information (in order to find out something or in order to do something with the information readers get). To apply scanning as the technique in teaching reading means the students can get the specific information quickly without reading the whole passage.

According to Harmer (2007), there are some principles for teaching reading.

- a. The first principle is that teachers should give motivation for students to read as often and as much as possible because by having much motivation, students will read more so that they will have a better comprehension of reading.
- b. The second principle is that students must be engaged with the topic of a reading text and be made to enjoy reading a text. Moreover, during the lessons, the teacher should ensure that students have gotten much pleasure from the reading activity as much as possible.
- c. The next principle is that students must be encouraged to explore their ideas about the message of the text. Students need to learn about reading text in order they get new information. Furthermore, the message of the text is also

- important to be known by students so that they can share their feelings and perceptions about the topic of the text.
- d. The fourth principle is to predict before reading. For example, by looking at the book's cover, students can guess the content of the book, so it can make them interested in selecting the book that they want to read. The last principle is that teachers should choose any good reading tasks for their students such as the appropriate activities before, during, and after reading: besides, making the right kind of questions based on the level of students and the topic of the text.
- e. The last principle is that a good teacher can integrate the reading text into an interesting lesson by giving a reading text that is full of sentences, words, and ideas to bring the text to be more life.

Based on some principles above, it can be concluded that a good teacher is a teacher who can improve students' reading comprehension by giving students motivation to read as much as possible and they have been engaged with the topic of reading, so they understand what they are reading.

2.6 Concept of Descriptive Text

Descriptive text is a type of text which can commonly be found in certain essays. It describes something based on its characteristics. As stated by Emilia (2011), descriptive text is a kind of text that has a purpose to give information about something or someone. In Descriptive text, writers describe a person, object, appearance, landscape, or phenomenon naturally so they can make the reader imagine and feel it.

According to Wardiman, et.al. (2008), descriptive text is a part of factual genres, and its social function is to describe a particular person, place, or thing. Meanwhile, Oshima and Hogue (1997) state descriptive appeals to the sense, so it tells how something looks, feels, smells, tastes, or sounds. Therefore, through the words in the text, the readers can see, feel, and experience what described in the text are. A descriptive text simply describes something or someone by appealing to the reader's senses: sight, sound, touch, smell, and taste.

b. Structure of Descriptive

Descriptive text is a text that is intended to describe a particular person, place, or thing. The schematic structure of descriptive text is divided into two: Identification and Description. The identification part is the part when writers of descriptive text identify the phenomenon to be described. The description part describes parts, qualities, and characteristics. The description focuses on specific participants. It normally uses the simple present tense. Besides schematic structure, the descriptive text also has its linguistic features. Linguistic features of descriptive text are the use of specific participants, written in the present tense, use of linking and action verbs, use of adjectives, use of relational and material processes (Derewianka In Emilia, 2011).

2.7 Cooperative Integrated Reading and Composition (CIRC)

The CIRC technique is developed to support the traditionally used "skill-based reading groups" approach. Firstly, reading groups are established in the classroom. Next, students are paired off within the groups. When the teacher works with a reading group, couples try to teach each other meaningful reading and writing skills

by using reciprocal learning techniques. They help each other in performing basic skill-building activities (such as oral reading, contextual guessing, asking questions, summarizing, writing a composition based on the story, and revising-correcting composition). In general, team books are published at the end of this process. Teams are rewarded for all reading and writing assignments on the basis of the average performance of group members. Thus, equal chance for achievement, group support for achievement, and performance, all basic components of cooperative learning ensure the realization of personal responsibility (Senemolu, 1997; Slavin, 1980).

Acikgoz in Erhan (2011), states that the cooperative integrated reading and composition (CIRC) technique, one of the learning techniques based on cooperation, is designed to develop reading, writing, and other language skills in the upper grades of primary education. CIRC technique presents a structure that increases not only opportunities for direct teaching in reading and writing but also the applicability of composition writing techniques.

According to Yudamini in Artawan (2020), in the CIRC technique, each student is responsible for the group work. This technique model starts from elementary school to high school. This technique process educates the students to interact with the environment. The discussion activities of students will determine the success of students' understanding of all learning concepts.

In short, Cooperative integrated reading in composition (CIRC) offers togetherness in working on a particular task by implementing instructional materials in group activities that stimulate students to develop their own and other's learning. CIRC demands students to work on a team, interact with each other, distribute ideas and objectives, and give perceptions

2.8 The Advantages of CIRC

According to Sanita (2019) there are some advantages of using CIRC in the learning process, they are:

- a) Train the students to respond to one another's reading.
- b) Train students to be active and braver in the classroom.
- c) Provided interaction with teachers and students.
- d) The students learn broadly applicable reading comprehension skills.
- e) Increase reading comprehension of low-achieving students.

2.9 Teaching Reading Through CIRC

According to Slavin (1995), proposes some steps in CIRC, they are teacher presentation, team practice, independent practice, peer pre-assessment, additional practice, and testing.

Kessler in Ristanto, et al (2018) states steps in CIRC learning are: a) students are grouped into several heterogeneous groups, b) each group reads an article or a reading, c) students rewrite the result of a discussion on a worksheet, d) each group displays or presents their result, and e) the best group is rewarded.

According to Suprajino in Sanita (2019), describes the steps of CIRC such as: a) the researcher explains the CIRC technique process, b) the researcher explains the subject, c) the researcher makes groups that consist of 4-5 students, Slavin states if

the teacher uses reading groups, students are divided into groups based on their ability level which could be determined by the teacher, d) the researcher give an issue/reading text. Slavin also states that the story is introduced and discussed in the reading group then the teacher determines the purpose of reading, introduces new vocabulary items, and discusses the story, e) the students cooperate in reading a text with each other and find the main idea. The other students give commands to the issue and it is written on pieces of paper, f) the researcher asks students to read the results of their work, g) the researcher makes conclusions.

The steps of CIRC should be appropriate to the students. So, the teacher can achieve the target of achieving students' learning process. From the explanation of the steps of CIRC from some experts above, it can be concluded that the steps of CIRC should be included with a teacher presentation, grouping consisting of four or five students, giving a text that is appropriate with the topic, working in a group in doing some tasks based on the text and topic, discussion, presenting the result of students' work, teacher' conclusion, and closing.

2.10 Perception

This section discusses the definitions of perception from various experts and the types of perception.

a. Definitions of Perception

Perception is obtained by summarizing the information from a person and interpreting the information so that the person can respond either positively or negatively to the information (Safitri, 2021).

According to Akande (2009), perception is concerned with understanding an issue. It is the psychological ability which aims to process and use information through the sense organs that affects one's actions and behavior toward an object. It is also approved by Hendra (2013), who states perception is the process by which an individual understands the thing around them and the environment through the five senses which are influenced by experiences so that the person is aware of what has been observed it ultimately affects his or her attitude and behavior.

In conclusion, perception is how an individual sees the world by recognizing and interpreting sensory information to interact with the environment.

b. Types of Perception

Perception refers to the way sensory information is organized and interpreted to interact with the environment. According to Walters in Wlgianto (2004), there are five aspects of perceptions:

1. Self Perception

Self-perception is based on self-esteem, self-concept, and self-efficacy. This means that perception is based on the (internal) intelligence of an individual. For instance, a boy can assume that he likes that girl when he feels nervous at the time of meeting that girl.

2. Environmental Perception

Environmental perception is based on the relationship individuals and communities have with the environment. People interpret something based on reality with regard to the surrounding environment.

3. Learned Perception

Learned perception is a perception that is built around personality, culture, and habits. For instance, a student studying in an Eastern climate may have a negative perception of the learning style of Western students, who often raise their left hand when they want to answer the questions given by the teacher.

4. Physical Perception

Physical perception is a perception that produces a physical activity, which comes from how the eyes see and the brain processes it.

5. Cultural Perception

Cultural perception is a perception in which a culture can influence the way one sees the world. For instance, people in Western cultures see an advertisement showing a woman in a white dress (white is associated with purity) as different from Eastern cultures (white represents death).

Based on the explanation above, it can be said that there are five types of perception. They are classified according to the source of the perception, from which the perception itself is built. The type of perception used in this research is self-perception.

2.11 Previous Study

There are several correlated studies dealing with CIRC techniques and reading comprehension. The first was done by Mubarok and Sofiana (2017) found that Cooperative Integrated Reading and Composition (CIRC) can improve students' reading ability in second-state junior high schools better than the conventional teaching strategy. It is proven that the result of the research showed that student's

scores were improving significantly. The result showed that the mean score of CIRC, 78.68 is compared with conventional strategy, 70.29, it could be found that the difference between these means is 8.39 points. Therefore, it could be concluded that CIRC is more effective than conventional strategy. It has a positive effect on the students' reading ability. Based on the explanation above, the research conducted research with the title "Cooperative Integrated Reading and Composition (CIRC) and Reading Motivation: Examining The Effect On Students' Reading Ability".

The second was done by Junariyah (2014) who analyzed the effectiveness of using CIRC technique on students' reading comprehension of recount text. It was conducted by MTsN Rajeg-Tanggerang in the second year. This researcher used a quantitative method and the design of this study pre—a experimental design because this research just took the sample from one class. Before doing the activity, the writer gives a pre-test and then treatment by using CIRC technique on reading recount text and the last writer gives a post-test to the students. The result of the study showed that there was a significant difference between students' scores in learning reading comprehension on recount text before and after applying CIRC technique. Students' scores are higher after applying CIRC technique.

The third previous study was done by Ayu (2017) who analyzed the implementation of CIRC (Cooperative Integrated Reading and Composition) technique to improve students' reading narrative text in the second grade of junior high school 7 Bandar Lampung. The score of the experimental class pre-test was 61.02 and the post-test was 71.76. It could be seen that the improvement in students' reading ability was

10.74. Besides, the result of the computation showed that the t-ratio was higher than the t-table (12.522 >2.032). based on the data above, it means that CIRC improves students' reading of narrative text.

To summarize, based on the previous studies above, it can be stated that all above mentioned studies reaffirmed the importance of the use of precise reading techniques to improve student's reading comprehension, in this case, is CIRC technique. All of the researchers above mentioned that the CIRC technique can help students to improve the students reading comprehension and gain the student's scores. However, all of the previous studies use narrative text for the research. So, this research will use different texts for the research and focus on the application of CIRC technique in guiding students to comprehend the descriptive text. Therefore, this research was carried out to investigate the use CIIRC technique to improve students' reading comprehension in descriptive text.

2. 12 Hypothesis

The hypothesis should be stated in clear terms. Furthermore, the hypothesis can make a clear question of this research. The hypotheses are described as follows:

H1: There is a significant difference between junior high school students' reading comprehension of descriptive text before and after being taught through CIRC technique.

III. METHODS

This chapter presents several points of how the research was conducted: research

design, population and sample, instrument, data collecting technique, research

procedure, validity and reliability of the research, scoring system, data analysis, and

hypothesis testing.

3.1 Research Design

This research was conducted with a quantitative method. The research was carried

out to find out the result of the CIRC technique in improving students' reading

comprehension and perceptions of students' reading comprehension after being

taught through CIRC technique. The researcher used one group pre-test and post-

test design to find out the improvement. The researcher researched to see whether

significant differences in student's reading comprehension after being taught using

CIRC technique. Before the treatments, a pre-test was carried out and after the

treatment was complete, a post-test was conducted. The design is illustrated as

follows:

TI X T2

Where:

TI: Pre-test

X: CIRC Technique

T2: Post-test

(Setiyadi, 2018)

For collecting student perceptions, the researcher used a questionnaire in the form of a Likert scale with a range of 1 to 5. According to Sugiyono (2016), the Likert scale is used to measure attitudes, opinions, and perceptions of individuals or groups related to the object of research.

The students were given a questionnaire by the researcher to get information related to their perceptions regarding the implementation of CIRC technique. The questionnaire provided 13 statements covering 3 different aspects benefits of learning atmosphere, benefits of learning activities, and benefits of CIRC. Each of the items provided 5 options.

This research was conducted in four meetings. In the first meeting, the researcher gave a pre-test to students. In the second and third meetings, the researcher gave treatment to students to investigate whether the implementation of CIRC technique can be used to improve students' reading comprehension. In the fourth meeting, the researcher gave a post-test to find out the improvement in reading comprehension and a questionnaire to find out the perceptions of students toward the implementation of CIRC technique.

3.2 Population and Sample

This section deals with the process of determining the population and sample is decided based on the following criteria:

3.2.1 Population

According to Sugiyono (2007), population is a generalization area consisting of objects or subjects that become certain quantities and characteristics set by 15 researchers to be studied and then concluded. The population of this research was

the first-grade students at SMPN 13 Bandar Lampung in the academic year of 2023/2024, which contains 30 students for each class.

3.2.2 Sample

The sample is a subgroup of the target population that the researcher plans to study for the purpose of making generalizations about the target population (Creswell, 2012). The sample of this research was the students of class 7.1 of SMPN 13 Bandar Lampung in the academic year 2023/2024. There were 30 students involved as the samples of this research with details of 13 males and 17 females. The researcher took the first-grade students because some of the previous studies have never taken the first-grade students as the sample.

3.3 Instruments

Arikunto (2010), states instrument is a device used by the researcher while collecting data to make her work easier and get a better result complete and systematic in order to make data easy to process.

There are two kinds of instruments that the researcher used for collecting the data, namely the reading comprehension test which consisted of the pre-test and post-test, also the questionnaire. The first instrument was a reading comprehension test in the form of multiple-choice questions with options a to e. The pre-test was given before the students were taught to use CIRC technique and the post-test was given after the students were taught to use CIRC technique. Table specification of the reading comprehension test has been tried out and can be seen in Table 3.2.

The second instrument was a questionnaire in the form of a Likert scale with a range 1 to 5 that describes strongly disagree to strongly agree to find out student perceptions in the implementation of CIRC strategy. The questionnaire provided 13 statements covering 3 different aspects benefits of learning atmosphere, benefits of learning activities, and benefits of CIRC. Each of the items provided 5 options.

3.4 Data Collection Technique

Creswell (2012), defines an instrument as a tool for measuring, observing, or documenting quantitative data. It contains specific questions and response possibilities that establish or develop advance of the study". Data are essential for the research process since without them, results cannot be obtained. The researcher must employ a data collection instrument to get the data. In this research, the researcher administered a pre-test, post-test, and questionnaire based on the planning as follows:

3.4.1 Pre-test

The researcher administered the pre-test which took 80 minutes. The pre-test has to be done to get the reading comprehension scores of the students before doing the treatment. In conducting the pre-test, the researcher provided a multiple-choice test in which the students were asked to choose one correct answer from the options a, b, c, or d.

3.4.2 Treatment

After giving a pre-test, the researcher gave the treatments to the students. The treatments were conducted two times. The class was given treatments by using CIRC technique in teaching reading comprehension, specifically in descriptive text. The activities for the treatment will be as follows:

- The first treatment deals with descriptive text about animals by giving the students some questions in order to check their reading comprehension and focus on the main idea, and vocabulary (the adjective word about the animal),
- 2. The second treatment deals with descriptive text about a person by giving the students some questions in order to check their reading comprehension and focus on the specific information, inference, and reference aspects.

3.4.3 Post-test

The researcher administered the post-test which also spent 80 minutes. The purpose of this test was to explore the student's improvement in comprehending descriptive text after the researcher treated CIRC technique. The technique of giving a post-test similar to the pre-test because the researcher wants to analyze the student's improvement after two treatments.

3.4.4 Questionnaire

The questionnaire was distributed in order to investigate the student's perceptions of reading comprehension of descriptive text using CIRC technique. The result of the questionnaire is a score based on the Likert Scale. Sugiyono (2017) has stated the Likert scale is used to measure the attitudes, opinions, and perceptions of a person or group of people about social phenomena.

Answer Alternatives	Scale of Score
Sangat tidak setuju (Strongly Disagree)	1
Tidak Setuju (Disadgree)	2
Ragu – Ragu (Neither agree or disagree)	3
Setuju (Agree)	4
Sangat Setuju (Strongly Agree)	5

3.5 Research Procedures

The procedure of the research is outlined as follows:

a. Determining the Subject

The population of this research was the first-grade students at SMPN 13 Bandar Lampung which a total of the class were 10 classes consisting of 30 students for each class. The researcher chose one class of the first-grade classes that was 7.1 students as the sample of this research.

b. Determining the Instruments

In this research, the researcher used appropriate instruments in order to be able to be interpreted. The instruments were the reading comprehension test and the questionnaires. The researchers collected some topics for the try-out test items. The topics were taken from the student's textbook and sources from the internet. Those materials were based on the teaching and learning syllabus. The topics were descriptive text. The tests were in multiple-choice forms, concerning the descriptive text. The questionnaire consisted of 13 statements about reading comprehension and CIRC technique.

c. Determining the Population and Sample

In this research, the researcher chose SMPN 13 Bandar Lampung as the population and sample. There were two classes in the first-grade level, those were: 7.1 and 7.2. the researcher took 7.1 classes as the sample of research and 7. 2 classes as a tryout class. Each class consisted of 30 students.

d. Organizing the Try-out Test

The try-out test was organized 90 minutes in the try-out class. It was conducted to measure the reliability of pre-tests and post-tests and to sure the tests are good or bad for students. This test is administered to find out the quality of the test before it is used, whether the items are good or bad in validity, reliability, level of difficulty, and discrimination power. The test uses reading text consisting of 50 items of multiple-choice questions. The maximum score is 100.

e. Organizing the Pre-test

After the beginning of the research, the students were given a pre-test. The pre-test was multiple choice questions and the researcher provided 35 items to the students. It was organized 80 minutes in the experimental class.

f. Giving Treatments by Teaching Through CIRC Technique

In the experimental class, the researcher taught the students to read the descriptive text by using CIRC technique. The researcher applied the treatment in the three meetings, which took 2 x 45 minutes in each meeting. The material was taken from students' English textbooks and internet sources adapted for the first grade of Junior High School level.

g. Administering the Post-test and Getting the Result

After giving treatments to the students, the researcher conducted the post-test to measure the student's reading comprehension ability after being given the treatments. The test consists of 35 items of multiple choices of descriptive text which took 80 minutes. The items are the same as the pre-test items, but it scrambled.

h. Administering the Questionnaire

The questionnaire was given to the students in order to investigate the student's perceptions of learning reading comprehension of descriptive text in applying CIRC technique.

i. Analyzing the Data (Pre-test, Post-test, and Questionnaire)

In this final stage of the research is analyzing the data. The results of the pre-test and post-test were analyzed by using a Repeated Measures t-test to compare the data of the two mean scores (Setiyadi, 2018). Meanwhile, the questionnaire data were statistically analyzed by using the Likert Scale. The researcher analyzed the difference by comparing the scores of pre-test and post-tests from the experimental class. The data was computed Statistical Package for Social Science (SPSS) and Microsoft Excel 2019.

j. Making the Conclusion

The researcher made the discussion and conclusions of this research.

3.6 Validity and Reliability of Research Instrument

In this section, there are two parts which discussed further they are validity and reliability. In conducting research, checking the validity and reliability is a must for the researcher. As mentioned by Setiyadi (2006) the quality of a test can be seen from the quality of the instrument's validity and reliability.

3.6.1 Validity of Reading Test

According to Setiyadi (2018), validity refers to the extent to which the test measures what is intended to measure. Hatch and Farhady (1982) added that there are two

basic types of validity; content validity and construct validity. In order to measure

whether the test has a good validity.

In this research, the researcher used inter-rater agreement for the validity test which

involved two raters, an English teacher of SMPN 13 Bandar Lampung and the

researcher. The researcher used content validity and construct validity described as

follows:

a. Content Validity

According to Brown (2000), content validity includes any validity strategies that

focus on the content of the test. To demonstrate content validity, the researcher

investigated the degree to which a test was a representative sample of the content

of whatever objectives or specifications the test was originally designed to measure.

The researcher enlisted the data from the syllabus to make judgments about the

degree to which the test items matched the test objectives or specifications of

descriptive text.

In this research, the researcher used the syllabus from the phase d teaching module

which contains learning achievements in Table 3.1.

Table 3. 1 Learning Achievement

Learning Achievement

By the end of Phase D, students independently read and respond to familiar and unfamiliar texts containing predictable structures and familiar vocabulary. They locate and evaluate main ideas and specific information in texts of different genres. These texts may be in the form of print or digital texts, including visual, multimodal or interactive texts. They identify the purpose of texts and begin to make inferences to

comprehend implicit information in the text.

Source: Based on *Modul Pembelajaran* (Appendix 1)

The researcher made the test based on five aspects of reading comprehension that can be seen in Table 3.2. The aspect is in line with the learning objective to be achieved.

Table 3. 2 Specification Table of Content Validity

No	Aspect of Reading	Item Numbers	Total of Item Numbers	Percentage of Items
1	Identifying the main idea	1, 4, 11, 16, 21, 28, 32, 40, 42, 48.	10	20%
2	Finding specific information	5, 13, 15, 20, 25, 29, 34, 35, 43, 47	10	20%
3	Identifying reference	8, 17, 19, 24, 27, 33, 37, 39, 44, 46	10	20%
4	Making Inference	3, 6, 9, 10, 14, 22, 31, 36 41, 49,	10	20%
5	Vocabulary	2, 7, 12, 18, 23, 26, 30, 38, 45, 50.	10	20%
	Total	50	50	100%

Source: Appendix 19 and Appendix 20

b. Construct Validity

According to Setiyadi (2018), construct validity is concerned with whether the test is actually in line with the theory of what it means to know the knowledge that is being measured.

Therefore, the researcher was assisted by an English teacher to determine whether the test was valid and the researcher tested the validity of both content validity and construct validity using inter-rater agreement by an English teacher and the researcher on Monday, December 11th, 2023. The raters conducted the validity test

on the 50 items, for the reading comprehension test. The reading comprehension test was valid. The evidence of validity can be seen in Appendix 19 and 20.

Regarding the questionnaire, the researcher reused questionnaires tested by previous researchers Atchawadee, Sireewan, Nuapan, Peera, and Nicholas in 2018 at the Demonstration School of Khon Kaen University Primary level, Thailand. The questionnaire can be seen in Appendix 16.

3.6.2 Reliability of Reading Test

According to Hatch and Farhady (1982), reliability refers to the extent to which the test is consistent in its score and gives us an indication of how accurate the test scores are. In this research, the researcher used SPSS 27 (Statistical Package of the Social Science) with the Gutman Split Half Coefficient for the reading comprehension test. Fraenkel, et al. (2012), stated the score is considered reliable whenever the reliability coefficient of the test score should be at least 0.70 or higher.

The result of the reliability test of the reading comprehension test in this research is described in Table 3.3.

Table 3. 3 The Result of The Reliability Test of Reading Comprehension

Reliability Statistics

1.000 Cronbach's Alpha Part 1 Value 1 ^a N of Items 1.000 Part 2 Value 1^b N of Items Total N of Items 2

Correlation Between Forms .786 Spearman-Brown Equal Length .880 Coefficient Unequal Length .880 .878

a. The items are: X

Guttman Split-Half Coefficient

b. The items are: Y

Based on the reliability of the test result in Table 3.3, the value of the Guttman Split Half Coefficient was 0.878 which was higher than 0.70. Therefore, it could be stated the test was reliable.

3.6.3 Difficulty Level

The level of difficulty is related to how easy or difficult the item is, from the students who take the test by giving the test and counting the students' correct answers. This research used the following formula:

$$LD = \frac{U+L}{N}$$

Where:

LD : Level of difficulty

: The number of upper group students who answer correctly U L : The number or lower group students who answer correctly

N : The total number of students following the test

The criteria are:

< 0.30 : Difficult 0.30 - 0.70: Average >0.70: Easy

To calculate the level of difficulty of each item the researcher used a formula through Microsoft Excel. Based on the result, it was found that there were 38 questions included in the average criteria with a value between 0.30 to 0.70. Meanwhile, there were 12 questions with a value of less than 0.30. The 12 questions with the criteria difficult can be illustrated in Table 3.4.

Table 3. 4 The Result of Level of Difficulty

Items	Level of	Criteria
	Difficulty	
7	0.26	Difficult
23	0.23	Difficult
27	0.2	Difficult
29	0.1	Difficult
30	0.33	Difficult
32	0.26	Difficult
35	0.3	Difficult
41	0.3	Difficult
45	0.26	Difficult
47	0.3	Difficult
49	0.26	Difficult
50	0.3	Difficult

Source: Based on the theory proposed by Shohamy, 1985. (Appendix 4)

3.6.4 Discrimination Power

The discrimination power (DP) refers to the extent to which a question on a test distinguishes between students at a high and low level. It is used to observe how various student performances within a group differ from one another. The purpose of this test is to distinguish between the number of students who provide accurate answers and those who do not. To find out the discrimination power of the test, the researcher used the following formula:

$$DP = \frac{U - L}{1/2 N}$$

Where:

DP : Discrimination power

U : The number of upper group students who answer correctlyL : The number or lower group students who answer correctly

N : The total number of students following the test

The criteria are as follows:

0.00 - 0.19: Poor

0.20 - 0.39: Satisfactory

0.40 - 0.69: Good

0.70 - 1.00: Excellent

- (Negative): Bad items, should be omitted

(Shohamy, 1985)

To calculate the discrimination power of each item the researcher used a formula through Microsoft Excel. Based on the result, it was found that there were 35 questions in the good criteria. Meanwhile, there were 15 questions in the poor criteria. All the results of the discrimination power calculation of each of the items can be seen in Appendix 4. Then 15 questions with the poor criteria can be illustrated in Table 3.5.

Table 3. 5 The Result of Discrimination Power

Items	Discrimination	Criteria
	Power	
7	0.13	Poor
14	0.13	Poor
16	0.13	Poor
23	0.06	Poor
27	0.13	Poor
29	0.06	Poor
30	0.13	Poor
32	0.13	Poor
35	0.06	Poor
41	0.06	Poor
45	0.13	Poor
47	0.06	Poor
48	0.13	Poor
49	0.13	Poor

50	0.06	Poor
50	0.00	1 001

Source: Based on the theory proposed by Shohamy, 1985. (Appendix 4)

3.6.5 Result of Try-Out

The researcher conducted a try-out of the reading comprehension test on the first-grade students of SMPN 13 Bandar Lampung. The try-out was conducted on January 17th, 2024 in 7.2 as a try-out class. 30 students attended the try-out. The researcher gave 50 questions in the form of multiple choice with options a, b, c, d, and e. The results of the try-out are illustrated in Table 3.6.

Table 3. 6 The Result of Try-Out

Level Of Difficulty			
Criteria	Items	Decision	
Difficult	7, 23, 27, 29, 30, 32, 35,	Dropped	
	41, 45, 47, 49, 50		
Average	1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9,	Administrated	
	10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 16,		
	17, 18, 19, 22, 24, 25,		
	28, 31, 33, 34, 36, 38,		
	39, 43, 44, 46, 48		
Easy	15, 19, 21, 26, 40, 42	Administrated	
Discrimination Power			
Criteria	Items	Decision	
	7, 14, 16, 23, 27, 29, 30,		
Poor	32, 35, 41, 45, 47, 48,	Dropped	
	49, 50		
Satisfactory	19, 38	Administrated	
	1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 8, 9, 10,		
	11, 12, 13, 15, 17, 18,		
Good	20, 21, 22, 24, 25, 26,	Administrated	
	28, 31, 33, 34, 36, 37,		
	39, 40, 42, 43, 44		

Source: Based on the theory proposed by Shohamy, 1985. (Appendix 4)

Based on the result above, in the difficulty level, there are 12 questions in the criterion difficult that must be dropped. The rest of the criterion average and easy questions are administered. Furthermore, in the discrimination power, 15 questions

41

in the criterion poor must be dropped, and 2 questions in the criterion satisfactory

are administered also 33 questions with good criteria cloud were administered for

the reading comprehension test to conduct pre-test and post-test.

3.7 Scoring System

To find out the scores of students on both the pre-test and the post-test, the

researcher uses a scoring method according to Arikunto (1997). The formula can be

illustrated as follows:

 $Score = \frac{\textit{The coorect answer}}{\textit{Total of number of item}} \times 100$

3.8. Data Analysis

After conducting pre-test and post-test, the researcher analyzed the data in order to

find out whether there was any significant increase in students reading achievement

after being taught by using CIRC technique. The researcher examined the students'

scores using the following steps.

3.8.1 Scoring the N-Gain of Pre-test and Post-test

To see student's progress achievement from the test, both from pre-test and post-

test. The researcher used the scoring method based on Meltzer (2002). The formula

can be illustrated as follows:

 $N_{Gain} = \frac{Posttest\ Score - Pretest\ Score}{Ideal\ Score - Pretest\ Score}$

The criteria are as follows:

g > 0.7: High

 $0.3 \leq g \geq 0.7 \quad : Average$

g < 0.3: Low

3.9.2 Drawing Conclusion

The conclusion is established from the result in data tabulation. It was statically computerized by paired sample t-test of SPSS in order to examine whether the increase in student gains was significant or not.

3.10 Hypotheses Testing

The hypothesis testing is used to prove whether the hypotheses proposed in this research are accepted or rejected. The hypothesis is as follows:

- Ho: There is no significant difference between junior high school students' reading comprehension of descriptive text before and after being taught through CIRC technique.
- 2. H1: There is a significant difference between junior high school students' reading comprehension of descriptive text before and after being taught through CIRC technique.

The researcher uses a Repeated Measure T-test to determine whether the hypothesis is accepted or rejected. The criteria for the hypothesis are:

Ho is rejected if the t-value is more than the t-table, which means H1 is accepted. It indicates that there is a significant difference between junior high school students' reading comprehension of descriptive text before and after being taught through CIRC technique.

The researcher analyzed the data to determine whether there is a significant difference in students' reading comprehension after they are taught through the CIRC technique. The researcher find out the data with the Paired Sample T-Test, and the result of the t value of this research was (8.963 < 2.045). Therefore, Ho was

rejected and H1 was accepted. It proves that the student's reading comprehension improved from the pre-test to the post-test.

V. CONCLUSION AND SUGGESTION

This chapter contains conclusions and suggestions for this research based on the results and discussion in the previous chapter.

5.1 Conclusions

Based on the result of the data analysis and discussion in the previous chapter, the researcher draws the following conclusions:

- a. There is a significant difference in students' reading comprehension at the 7.1 class of SMPN 13 Bandar Lampung after the students were taught by using CIRC technique. Improvement scores can be identified from the result of students' reading comprehension where the mean of the post-test (73,13)
- b. was higher than the mean of the pre-test mean score (55.60) with a gain score of 0.375. The results of hypotheses testing with Repeated Measures t-test showed the t-value (<0.001) was less than the significant level (0.05) and t-ratio (8.963) was higher than the t-table (2.045). Therefore, it can be concluded that the implementation of CIRC technique is able to help students to improve their reading comprehension, especially on the descriptive text.
- c. The result of the questionnaire showed that the most of students' perceptions after being taught through CIRC technique to improve students' reading comprehension in the descriptive text are positive. It can be concluded that the CIRC technique is useful and efficient from the learning atmosphere,

learning activities, and the good impact of teamwork in learning. Incorporating CIRC techniques in teaching practice can improve collaboration, motivation, and academic performance leading to better outcomes learning experience.

5.2 Suggestions

The researcher puts forward some suggestions for other researchers and teachers as follows:

1. Suggestions for English Teacher

- a. Teachers should occasionally provide opportunities for students to use the CIRC as an alternative reading technique to improve their reading comprehension after starting learning.
- b. Teachers must be able to create an orderly class atmosphere and make all students focus on their respective groups and focus on their respective reading texts.
- c. The teacher should provide some games to students, especially teambuilding games, which are highly recommended to make students more enthusiastic and not feel bored after reading.

2. Suggestion for Further Research

CIRC technique is an effective technique to help students in reading comprehension reading the passage in which the teaching and learning process is mainly in group learning activities. The researcher suggests the other researcher create an orderly class atmosphere and make all students focus on their respective groups and focus on their respective reading texts.

Further researchers should pay more attention to students in the process of CIRC technique in groups.

Further researchers should conduct similar research at different levels of students since this research only analyzed the use of CIRC technique to improve students' reading comprehension at the junior high school level. Further research could organize similar research at the level of elementary, senior, or college students since the technique is appropriate for any level of students.

Further researchers should conduct similar research on different texts of reading text since this research only analyzed the use of CIRC technique to improve students' reading comprehension only in descriptive text. Further research could organize similar research with different text of reading texts such as narrative text, procedure text, recount text, and report text.

REFERENCES

- Akande, S. O. (2009). Knowledge, Perception, and Attitudes of Library Personnel Towards Persevation on Information Resources in Nigerian Federal University Libraries. *Library Philosophy and Practice (e-journal)*, 303,1-8.
- Alhaidari, M. S. (2006). The Effectiveness of Using Cooperative Learning to Promote Reading Comprehension, Vocabulary, and Fluency Achievement Score of Male Fourth-and Fifth Grade Students in Saudi Arabian School. USA: Pennsylvania State University
- Alyousef, H. S. (2006). Teaching reading comprehension to ESL/EFL learners. *Journal of language and learning*, 5(1), 63-73.
- Arikunto, S. (1997). Dasar-dasar evaluasi pendidikan edisi 3. Bumi Aksara.
- Artawan, G. (2020). Narrating in Cooperative Learning Integrated Reading and Composition (CIRC) Learning in Elementary School to Improve Reading Skills. *JPI (Jurnal Pendidikan Indonesia)*, 9(2), 171-181.
- Atcharawadee, S., N., Peera, P., T., Netsiri, N., David, Kevin, C., Stephen. (2018). Using Cooperative Learning CIRC Technique to Enhance English Reading and Writing Skills for The Second Grade Students. *ICER*. Thailand: Khon Kaen University
- Ayu, Y. M. (2017). The Implementation of CIRC (Cooperative Integrated Reading and Composition) Technique to Improve Students' Reading Narrative Text in The Second Grade of Junior High School 7 Bandar Lampung. Repositori Lampung University
- Brown, H.D. (2001). Teaching by Principles: An Interactive Approach to Language Pedagogy. *2nd Ed. New Jersey*: Prentice Hall, Inc.
- Calderon, M., Hertz-Lazarowitz, & Slavin, R. (1998). Effects of Bilingual Cooperative Integrated Reading and Composition on Students Making the Transition from Spanish to English Reading. *The Elementary School Journal*, 99(2), 153–164.
- Chuquiguanga Tenesaca, W. S., & Bravo Caguana, G. M. (2023). Implementing Cooperative Integrated Reading and Composition (CIRC) technique to improve tenth-grade students' reading comprehension (Bachelor's thesis, Universidad Nacional de Educación). Repositorio Digital De La Universidad Nacional De Educación
- Creswell, J. W. (2013). Educational research: Planning, conducting, and evaluating. W. Ross MacDonald School Resource Services Library.

- Durukan, E. (2011). Effects of cooperative integrated reading and composition (CIRC) technique on reading-writing skills. *Educational Research and Reviews*, 6(1), 102.
- Duke, N. (2003). Comprehension instruction for informational text. Presentation at the annual meeting of the Michigan Reading Association, *Grand Rapids*, MI.
- Eskey, D. E. (2002). Reading and the teaching of L2 reading comprehension. *TESOL Journal*, 11 (1), 5-9
- Emilia, E. (2008). Menulis tesis dan disertasi. Bandung: Alfabeta.
- Gerot, Linda & Wignell, Peter. (1995). Making Sense of Functional Grammar. Sydney: *Antipodean educational Enterprise*.
- Freeman, D.L. (2000). *Techniques and principle in language teaching*. New York: Oxford University press.
- Hatch, E. and Farhady, H. (1982). Research Design and Statistic for Applied Linguistics. Rowley: Newburry House Publishers Inc
- Hendra, F. (2013). Persepsi Mahasiswa Terhadap Proses Pembelajaran Kemahiran Bahasa. *Jurnal Al-Azhar Indonesia Seri Humaniora*, 2(1), 70-71.
- Harmer, J. (2007). *How to teach English*. Essex: Pearson Education Limited.
- Hedge, T. (2000). *Teaching and Learning in the Language Classroom*. Oxford: Oxford University Press.
- Iskandar, T. Z. (2016). *Psikologi Lingkungan: Teori dan Konsep (NF Atif (ed.)*. PT. Refika Aditama.
- Ghufron, A., & Hardiyanto, D. (2017, May). The quality of learning in the perspective of learning as a system. *In 1st Yogyakarta International Conference on Educational Management/Administration and Pedagogy (YICEMAP 2017)* (pp. 255-259). Atlantis Press.
- Junariyah. (2014). The Effectiveness Of Using CIRC Technique To Improve Students Reading Comprehension On Recount Text. Jakarta: UIN JAKARTA
- Johnson, David, & Johnson, Roger W., & Smith, Karl. (1991). Active Learning: Cooperation in the College Classroom; Interaction Book Company, 7208 Cornelia Drive, Edina, MN 55435, ISBN 0-939603-14-4
- Kalayo Hasibuan and Muhammad Fauzan. (2007). A. Teaching English as Foreign Language (TEFL). Pekanbaru: *Alaf Riau Graha UNRI press*. p. 115

- Kopitski, M. 2007. Exploring the Teaching of Inference Skills (A Capstone submitted in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of Master of Arts in English as a Second Language). Minnesota: Hamline University.
- Lukmana, A. P. (2023). The Effectiveness of Cooperative Integrated Reading and Composition on Vocational High School Students' Reading Comprehension. *RETAIN (Research in English Language Teaching in Indonesia Journal)*, 11(2), 23-29.
- Mikulecky, B.S. & Linda, J. (2004). More Reading Power. Reading for Pleasure, Comprehension Skills, Thinking Skills, Reading Faster. 2nd Edition. New York: Longman.
- Mubarok, H., & Sofiana, N. (2017). Cooperative integrated reading and composition (circ) and reading motivation: examining the effect on students' reading ability. *Lingua Cultura*, 11(2), 121-127.
- Meltzer, D. E. (2002). The relationship between mathematics preparation and conceptual learning gains in physics: A possible "hidden variable" in diagnostic pretest scores. *American journal of physics*, 70(12), 1259-1268.
- Nafisah, N., and Kurniawan, E. (2007). Writing for General Communication. Bandung: *UPI Press*.
- Nuttal, C. (1982). *Teaching Reading Skill in Foreign Language*. London: Heinemann Educational Books.
- Petel, M.F., Jain, P. M. (2008). English language teaching (method, tools, techniques). Jaipur: Sunrise Publisher & Distributors.
- Rainbolt, G. W. & Dwyer, S. L. 2011. Critical Thinking: The Art of Argument. Wadsworth. (Online). http://grammar.about.com/od/rs/g/referenceterm.htm. Accessed on 22nd November, 2023
- Roell, K. 2016. How to Find the Main Idea. (Online). (http://testprep.about.com/od/tipsfortesting/a/Main_Idea.htm). Accessed on 12nd November, 2023.
- Ristanto, R. H., Zubaidah, S., Mohamad, A. M. İ. N., & Rohman, F. (2018). The potential of cooperative integrated reading and composition in biology learning at higher education. *International Journal of Educational Research Review*, 3(1), 50-56.
- Safitri, M. (2021). Students' Perception of the Use of Social Media for Learning English (A Case Study at the Eleventh-Grade Students of SMA Al-Hasra in Academic Year 2020/2021) (Bachelor's thesis, Jakarta: Fitk Uin Syarif Hidayatullah Jakarta).

- Sanita. (2019). The Effectiveness Of Using Cooperative Integrated Reading And Composition (CIRC) Technique To Improve Students Reading Comprehension On Recount Text At The Second Year Of SMPN 5 Parepare. Parepare: IAIN Parepare
- Suprijono, A. (2009). Cooperative learning teori dan aplikasi paikem. Yogyajarta: Pustaka Pelajar
- Snow, C. (2002). Reading for understanding: Toward an R&D program in reading comprehension. *Rand Corporation*.
- Sundari, S., & Rahmawati, F. A. Does Problem Based Learning Improve Student Self Diricted Leaarning Abilities?. *Jurnal Pendidikan Kedokteran Indonesia: The Indonesian Journal of Medical Education*, 11(4), 374-380.
- Setiyadi, A.B. (2006). *Metode Penilitian Untuk Pengajaran Bahasa Asing*. Yogyakarta: Graha Ilmu.
- Setiyadi, A.B. (2018). *Metode Penilitian Untuk Pengajaran Bahasa Asing Pendekatan Kualitatif dan Kuantitatif*. Yogyakarta: Graha Ilmu.
- Slavin, R. E. (1987). *Cooperative integrated reading and composition*. Washington: Officer of Special Education and Rehabilitative Services.
- Slavin, R. E. (1995). Cooperative Learning: Theory, Research, and Practice (2nd ed.). Massachusetts: Allyn and Bacon.
- Slavin, R. E. (2011). Instruction based on cooperative learning. Handbook of research on learning and instruction, 4(2), 12-23.
- Shohamy, E. G. (1985). A Practical Handbook in Language Testing for the Second Language Teacher: A Collection of Principles, Procedures, and Examples in the Planning, Writing, Administering Analyzing and Using Language Tests. Tel-Aviv University.
- Soekanto, S. (1993). Kamus Sosiologi. Jakarta: PT. Raja Grafindo Persada.
- Sugiyono. (2006). Statistika untuk Penelitian. Bandung: Alfabeta
- Sugiyono. (2016). *Metode Penelitian Kuantitatif, Kualitatif dan R &. D.* Bandung: Alfabeta.
- Somantri, A., Muhidin, A. S. (2006). *Aplikasi Statistika Dalam Penelitian*. Bandung: Pustaka Setia
- Suparman, U. 2005. Understanding and Developing Reading Comprehension. Bandar Lampung: University of Lampung.

- Sutarsyah, C. (2015). Reading Theory and Practice. Yogyakarta, Graha Ilmu.
- Virtanen, A., Lauritsalo, K., Mäkinen, T., Hurskainen, H., & Tynjälä, P. (2022, July). The role of positive atmosphayuere on learning generic skills in higher education—Experiences of physical education students. *In Frontiers in education* (Vol. 7, p. 886139). Frontiers Media SA.
- Vener, D. 2002. Landmark School Outreach Program: Finding the Main Idea. (Online). (http://www.lndmarkoutreach.org/publications/spotlight/findingmain-idea). Accessed on 3rd November, 2023